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Collegeville’s
St. John the Baptist Parish:
a few tidbits from its history

Saint John the Baptist Parish

Collegeville, Minnesota

We are the Church, and God is with us ...

Covers of the Parish centennial commemoration liturgy program and the 1988 Parish
Directory.
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Title: Stones and hills = Steine und Huegel: reflections, St. John
the Baptist Parish, 1875-1975.

Publisher: Collegeville, Minn.: St. John the Baptist Parish, c1975.
Description: v, 179 p.: ill., ports.; 23 cm.

Available online, in the SJU Archives, and in the SJU Library's General
Collection: BX4603.C64 S85 1975
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Stones and Hills

Stones and Hills / Steine und Huegel

Reflections: St. John the Baptist Parish, 1875-1975

NOTE: This book is available in the SJU Library’s General Collection: BX 4603 .C64 885 1975

& © Finding Aids From the Forward: "Many St. John the Baptist parishioners authored this book. In mid-1973, in its initial planning
i © Photos and Maps sessions for the centennial celebration, the parish council commissioned that a history of the parish he prepared.
{‘_q ‘What resulted here two years later is not a detailed history of the parish from 1875 to 1975; rather it is an accounting
A © pusications of major events of that century's parish life and more importantly a reflection through anecdotes and photos of the

flavor of that life."

© Student Newspapers

“...not a detailed history of the parish
from 1875 to 1975, but rather an
accounting of major events of that

century's parish life and a reflection
through anecdotes and photos of the
flavor of that life."

http://www.csbsju.edu/SJU-
Archives/SJUHistory/BooksaboutStlohns/StonesandHills.htm



Weddings were usually small and celebrations took place
in the home of one of the parents. Beer barrels were rolled
out, the floor cleared, and the Meyer Band would frequently
play its same selections over and over again — like: Over the
Waves, Our Director, The Village Tavern, and the Sharp
Shooters March. Sometimes a baseball game, to work up
the men’s thirst, preceded the dance. For a large wedding
the crowd would be invited to the Granite City Coliseum.

Meyer Band: Gilbert, Ralph, Simon and Delphine Meyer

The traditional love of a German-American for lager
and schnapps was not suppressed at Collegeville during the
“great experiment.” When prohibition became law in the
United States on January 17, 1920, the law was taken lightly
in Collegeville.

During the prohibition era, Collegeville was an internal
part of the Stearns County “heartland” that produced
what many considered the best moonshine in the coun-
try called “Minnesota 13.” Only after prohibition did
it become known that one of the probable reasons for
the excellence of the moonshine was that it was pro-
duced in good copper stills, made by Brother Justus of
the abbey.

Prohibition did not hurt the wedding celebrations or
parties. “We ate, drank lots of moonshine at $.10 a drink.
There were stills all over the place.”

this helped to bett
the rhborhood farmers.

Stones & Hills, p. 113 & 120



USA, coined the derogatory
phrase “beer monks,” despite
Pope Pius IX's sympathetic
agreement with future Abbort
Boniface Wimmer that monks
without beer was no cause for

cheer.

In his centenary history of Saint
John’s, Worship and Work,
Father Colman Barry quotes a
conversation between Abbot
Boniface and Bishop Mathias
Loras of Dubuque, justifying the
abbot’s attempt to establish a

Abbey Banner article "Minnesota 13” by Aaron Raverty p. 22-23
https://cdm.csbsju.edu/digital/collection/SJUArchives/id/49638

Yy Banner Winter 2019 p. 22-23

Franciscan
where to s
own viney3
their own ¢

Indeed, the
culture and
and well in|
and beer w
plentiful a:
celebration|
Mt Schear
“Anecdota
gested that|
held mode:
virtue” (6).]
€Ver, was o
enjoyment
in itself sin

condoned
Church. |
Min

Elaine Dav|
questionab)
tant priest
ar St. Mary
Clond in a
had confes? - = .
ing moonshine. The young priest
asked, “What should I give him?*
Father Luke replied, ‘If it’s g
stuff, give him $10™ (2

confreres consider it unlik

would have permitted this.

The “nonsense™ of Prohibition

2019 Volume 19 Number 03 Abbey Banner Winter

Saint John’s campus during the
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liquor did not collapse the moral

order; very few of the Stearns
producers drank much of the
alcohol they made, and there

was little drunkenness™ (126).
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Stones and Hills

Stones and Hills / Steine und Huegel

Reflections: St. John the Baptist Parish, 1875-1975

© Digital Archives NOTE: This book is available in the SJU Library’s General Collection: BX 4603 .C64 585 1975

© Finding Aids From the Forward: "Many St. John the Baptist parishioners authored this book. In mid-1973, in its initial planning

© Photos and Maps sessions for the centennial celebration, the parish council commissioned that a history of the parish he prepared.
‘What resulted here two years later is not a detailed history of the parish from 1875 to 1975; rather it is an accounting

© Publications of major events of that century's parish life and more importantly a reflection through anecdotes and photos of the

© Student Newspapers flavor of that life.”

Appendix 1: Parish Founding Charter (pp. 157-159)

Appendix 2: Pastors (pp. 160-163) \

Appendix 3:

part 1: Cemetery photos (pp. 164-165)
part 2: Faithful Departed A-Ph (pp. 166-174)
part 3: Faithful Departed Pi-Z (pp. 175-180 and back cover)

http://www.csbsju.edu/SJU-
Archives/SJUHistory/BooksaboutStlohns/StonesandHills.htm



¥r. Cgril Ovimasn, 0SB Fr. Mewbert Budsrsik, 0SB

e, Merod Fucke, 0SB Jondern. Stovik, OSH

Pastors of St. John the Baptist Parish.

Clement Snul), 0OsB
1L

s U]n( Northmann, OSB
Isidore Siegler, OSB
3 S(hnn Gross, OSB
\

Rev. Joseph

Fr, Valerian

“r. Magnus Hermanutz, OSB
Fr. Jerome Simmer, OSB

7r. George Scheffold, OSB

. Timothy Majerus, OSB

Fr. Christopher Bay
r, Cyril Ortmann,

. Rembert Bularzik, OSB
Lancelot Atsch, OSB
Harold Fuchs, OSB

. Jordan Stovik, OSB

Jan, 1876-Nov. 1876
76—_Fel

Feb. 1947—Aug.

Aug. 1956—Aug, 1
Aug. 1965—June 1966
July 1966—July 1967

Benjamin Stein, OSB, assistant pastor — 1966
Wendelin Luetmer, OSB

Fr. Kiwan, Nolen, 0S8

Kieran Nolan, OSB: Aug. 1972 - July 1978

Roger Klassen, OSB: July 20, 1978 - June 1990

Robert Pierson, OSB: July 1990 - June 1991

Simeon Thole, OSB: July 1991 - June 1996

Jonathan Licari, OSB: July 1996 - May 2001

Blane Wasnie, OSB: August 2001 - June 2003

Eugene McGlothlin, OSB: July 2003 - August 2010
Jerome Tupa, OSB: August 2010 - June 2012

Wilfred Theisen, OSB, interim pastor: June - August 2012
Nathanael Hauser, OSB: September 2012 - August 2014
Gregory Miller, OSB: August 2014 - June 2019

Jerome Tupa, OSB: July 2019 -

Stones & Hills, p. 33 & Appendix 2 & Stones & Hills website,

http://www.csbsju.edu/SJU-
Archives/SJUHistory/BooksaboutStlohns/StonesandHills.htm

Photos from Stones & Hills p. 163 — pastors from 1944 — 1978
Peter Engel was the abbot from November 28, 1894 - November 27, 1921



Abbot Peter Engel, OSB

aged to

o ‘be pastor of the parist

Peter Engel, he was a fine priest. He used to go around
in a bugg) in one hand and reins in the other.

Jubilee of Fr. Abbot Peter Engel, OSB

Jubilee photo from Stones & Hills p. 94; “buggy” quote from p. 100, longer text from
Godfrey Diekmann’s sermon for the Parish Centennial Dec. 12, 1975, p. 4



Pastor 1947-1956

Fr. Rembert Bularzik, OSB

Date: Dec. 20, 1953

Of parishioners owing pew-rent payments, over one-fourth are still in arrears
for this ysar. The parish account books should properly be closed at the end of the

year, Payments may be left with the trustee, Mr, Schreiner, at the Porter's office
or deposited in the collection basket, Receipts will then be mailed, Better still,
call at the parish office,

Pew renters were “in arrears”!

Photo: Stones & Hills p. 105
Clippings are from the parish bulletins, in the St. John’s Abbey Archives.



Some of the bulletin notes dealt with doctrine & church rules:

Date: Christmas 1961

Fr. Lancelot Atsch

Some were witty and reminiscent of the SJU Chaplain’s Letters:

Date: October 28, 1962

Date: February 19, 1961
A common theme was harping

about attendance at mass:

...and occasionally about attendance at other things:

Date: October 9, 1960

Fr. Lancelot Atsch, pastor from 1956-1965

Clippings are from the parish bulletins, in the St. John’s Abbey Archives.

10



Parish financial matters were frequently mentioned:

Date: October 30, 1960

en wave of umemplo;
the parish during O

Fr. Lancelot Atsch

" peema to

Date: February 26, 1961

...apparently for good reason!

Date: November 4, 1962

he a
}

Fr. Lancelot Atsch, pastor from 1956-1965
Clippings are from the parish bulletins, in the St. John’s Abbey Archives.

11



W

Fr. Lancelot Atsch . )
And speaking of finances:

Date: April 2, 1961

Fr. Lancelot Atsch, pastor from 1956-1965
Clippings are from the parish bulletins, in the St. John’s Abbey Archives.

12



1924 aerial view of St. John’s

...just before the Parish built its school past the cemetery

13
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From 1925 to 1967, the parish conducted a parochial
school on land leased from St. John's Abbey.

Cornerstone photo from 1975 Parish Directory p. 17
School photo from Stones & Hills p. 125
Text:

14



Besides the Sunday contributions, parish organizations regularly raised money for the
school. From 1928-1929, during the depression, the parish paid $630 on the school debt.

Payment in full was made in 1935. The school continued for forty-two years, closing in
1967. Every morning began with Mass, followed by religion classes.

|
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Photos from Stones & Hills p. 125
Text from Parish school history.pdf

15
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[In 1967] The members of the parish voted to close the school
plant to regular parochial school classes. The reasons: rising costs
of operating and a sharp decrease in the student population
served due to the available public school facility (JFK elementary
in St. Joseph) and the new bus laws.

-- Edward Vessel, Education Committee (attached
to A Partial Report of the Parish Survey, 28 Feb. [1972])

Photo from Stones & Hills p. 125

16



More vandalism and a fire continued to raise havoc with
the empty building. Thus in the fall 1974 the structure was
razed and the debris hauled away, almost overnight.

Stones & Hills, p. 141; text from Stones & Hills, p. 143

17



The parish school site today

Compiled in 2014 & 2019-2020

by Peggy Landwehr Roske, CSB/SJU Archivist.

All rights reserved.

Stones & Hills, p. 141; text from Stones & Hills, p. 143
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